- 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenus Service

EXTENDED TO NOVEMBER 15, 2022
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1} of the Internal Revenue Code {except private foundations)

P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
P Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2021

A For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending
B Check it C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
[ ]%&e | PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC
hnge Doing business as 39-1093781
oty Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
etetn 833 NORTH 26TH STREET 414-344-7676
S City or town, state or province, country, and ZtP or foreign postal code G _Gross receipts § 8,793,397.
el MILWAUKEE, WI 53233-1507 H(a) Is this a group return
E:,ggﬁ:;: F Name and address of principal officer; CHRISTINE HOLMES for subordinates? | |Yes No

SAME AS C ABOVE

H{b) are all subordinates included? I:IYBS I:I No

| Tax-exempt status: 501{c)3) |:| 501(c} {

)l (insartno [ ] 4gar@anior [ ] 527

[f "No," attach a list. See instructions

J Website: p WAW. PENFIELDCHILDREN . ORC

H{c) Group exemption number

K _Form

of organization: Gorporation || Trust [ ] Association [ ] Other >

| L vear of formation: 196 8| M State of legal domicile; W

Summary

o| 1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites: THE ORGANTZATION'S SOLE PURPQOSE
2 YIS TO HELP INFANTS AND YOUNG CHILDREN WITH ALL ABILTTIES REACH THEIR
g 2 Check this box |:| If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
% 3 Number of voting members of the goveming pody (Part VI, line1a) . 3 38
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 38
o 5 Total number of individuals employed in caler:dar year 2021 (Part V, fine 228 5 112
E| & Total number of volunteers {estimate if necessary) B 155
3| 7a Totai unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form @901, Part L line 11 7b 0.
. Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIl line 1h) 5,730,529, 6,353,218.
2| 9  Program service revenue (Part VIII, lne 2g) e 1,138,155, 1,837,536.
2 16 Investment income {(Part VIll, column {4), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 1,958, 2,643,
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (&), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢, 10c, and ey 0. 0.
12 _Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vill, column (4), line 12) 6,870,642, 8,793,397,
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part [X, column (A), lines 1-3) 0. 0.
14 Bensfits paid to or for members (Part X, column (A), fine L 0. 0.
2 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee berefits (Part IX, column (4), lines 5-10) 5,047,187, 5,190,015,
2} 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line ey 0 ) 0
E. b Total fundraising expenses (Fart IX, column (13}, line 25) | g 0. : -
W1 17 Otherexpenses (Part IX, column (A}, lines 11a-11d, 11:248) 975,050. 894,081.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 1317 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 6,022,237. 6,084,056.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ... . ... 848,405. 2,709,301.
&g Beginning of Current Year End of Year
‘;ng 20 Totalassets (PartX, line 16} 4,195,955, 6;491;693-
<3 21 Total fiabilities (Part X, line 26) e 929,867. 516,304.
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances, Subtract line 21 from line 20 ................ e 3,266,088, 5,975,389,

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accomganying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is

true, correct, and complete. Reclaration of preparer (

other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Lodpel? P Atz lz, {2032
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here CHRISTINE HOLMES, CEO AND PRESIDENT
Type or print name and title
Print/Type preparer's name Praparer's signaturs Date Ehezk ]| FPTw

Paid TROY MARINE, CPA TROY MARINE, CPA 11/15/22 Iseli-emplnﬂad PO0187863
Preparer | Fimsname p BAKER TILLY US, LLP Firm'sEiNp. 39-0859910
Use Only |Firm'saddress p. 777 E WLISCONSIN AVENUE, 32ND FLOOR

MITWAUKEE, WI 53202 Phore no.414.777.5500
May the IRS discuss this retumn with the preparer shown above? See instructions o Yes L___i No
132001 12-09-21  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2021)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION



Forrm 990 {2021} PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 page2
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Park Il ... e eeeeieeemiieeaiieeeeieiiiiieeecsisessoniisioiiiesesees D
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:

THE ORGANIZATION'S SOLE PURPOSE IS TO HELP INFANTS AND YOUNG CHILDREN
WITH ALL ABILITIES REACH THEIR FULL POTENTIAL THRQOUGH EDUCATION,
THERAPY SERVICES AND FAMILY PROGRAMS.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 890 or 080-EZ2 [ Jves [X]no
If "Yes," describe these new services on Scheduia Q.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? [:]Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule 0.

4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(¢}(3) and 501 (c)(4} organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

da (code: ) {Expanses$ 1 s 6 5 2 ) 2 5 4 . including grants of § } (Revenue § )
BIRTH TO THREE PROGRAM:

340 CHILDREN RECEIVED BIRTH-TO-3 EARLY INTERVENTION SERVICES FOR
CHILDREN WITH DEVELOPMENTAL DISABTILITIES OR DELAYS. 47 CHILDREN
SPECIALTIZED NURSING SERVICES, TOTALING 780 NURSE CONTRACTS. 602
CHILDREN RECEIVED THERAPY SERVICES. REVENUE FOR THE BIRTH TO THREE
PROGRAM IS BROKEN DOWN AS FOLLOWS ON THE PART VIII STATEMENT OF
REVENUE: $1,666,695 LINE 1E GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND $0 LINE 2 PROGRAM -
SERVICE REVENUE.

4b  (code: } {Expenses & 3 s 568 (270, including grants of § } (Revenues 1, 837 I 536. )
ALL OTHER PROGRAMS:
227 CHILDREN UNDER SIX YEARS OF AGE WERE SERVED BY THE BEHAVIORAL
CLINTC FOR AGGRESSION, SERIQUS TANTRUMS, OPPOSITIONAL BEHAVIOR,
PROPERTY DESTRUCTION, HYPERACTIVITY, SELF-INJURY, SEPARATION ANXIETY
AND CHILDREN WHO HAVE EXPERIENCED TRAUMA. APPROXIMATELY 34 CHILDREN
AGES THREE YEARS TO FOURTEEN YEARS RECEIVED SERVICES IN PENFIELD'S
OUTPATIENT CLINIC. 87 CHILDREN AGES FOUR WEEKS TO NINE YEARS WERE
ENROLLED IN PENFIELD'S CHILD CARE PROGRAM. ROUGHLY 400 CHILDREN
FARTICIPATED IN PENFIELD'S FAMILY PROGRAMS. REVENUE FOR OTHER PROGRAMS
IS BROKEN DOWN AS FOLLOWS ON THE PART VIITI STATEMENT OF REVENUE: &0
LINE 1E GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND $1,837,536 LINE 2 PROGRAM SERVICE
REVENUE.

4¢ (Cnde: ) (Expenses $ including grants of § ) (Rauenua$ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schadule O.)
(Expenses § incluging grants of § } {Revenus$ )
4e Total program service expenses p» 5,220,524,

Form 990 (2021)
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PENFTELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 Page 3

Checklist of Required Schedules

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(7) {other than a private foundation)?
if "Yes," complete Schedule A .

public office? if 'Yes, " complete Schedule C, Part! .. ...
Section 501{c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 {h} election in effect
during the tax year? if *ves, " complete Schedule C, Partlf SO ST UR IO
Is the organizaiion a section 501(c){4), 501 ()5}, or 501 (c)(B) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 ff "vgs, » complete Schedule C, Part il ... .
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
Frovide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part |
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to presarve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? if'Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I oo
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? ff "yag," complete
Schedule D, Part il ... ... .. e e e e e SO
Did the organization report an amaunt in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?

if "Yes," complate Schedule D, Part IV

or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V... e -
If the organization's answer to any of the following guestions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIil, IX, or X,
as appficabls.

Did the crganization report an amount for land, buildings, and eguipment in Part X, line 10?7 f "Yes," complete Schedule D,

Part Vi

assets reported in Part X, line 167 if "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIfl ... ...
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in

Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX .. ...
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the erganization's ssparate or consolidated financia! statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? Jf "Yas," complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? jf “ves," complete
Schedule D, Parts XI and Xit

!f "Yes," and if ihe organization answered "No' to fine 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X! and Xit is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 170(BY1AN? fF "Yes, " complete Schedule E
Did the organization maintain an office, employess, or agents outside of the United States?

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or mere? if "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts fand V' oo ISR SRRSO
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (4}, fine 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any

foreign organization? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedufe F, Parts It and IV

domestic government on Part X, column {A), line 1? jf "Yes " complete Schedule 1. Parisfangll .o

Yes | No
1 [ X
2 | X
3 X
4 X
5 X
6 X
7 X
8 X
g X

11a] X
11b X
11g X
11d X
11e | X
111 [ X
12a X
12b| X
13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 X
18 X
19 X
20a X
20b
21 X

132003 12-08-21
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890 (2021) PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 38-1093701  Page 4
N [ Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for demestic individuals on
Part IX, column {A), line 2? ¢ "Yes, " complste Schedule I, Parts tand il ... . 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" 1o Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated empioyess? Jf "yag," complste
Scheduie J 23 | X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and completa

Schedule K. If 'No," gotoline 2a ... ... . R 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt tonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exempt bonds? S e e e 24c ;
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of* issusr for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d ‘;
25a Section 501(c)(3), 50%(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit i
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? J# "yes,* complete Schedule L, Part{ ... . e 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified persen in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 980-EZ? If "Yes," complste
Schedule L, Fart | 25h X i

26  Did the organization report ary amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key empioyee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? jf "Yes, " cornplate Schedule L, Part if 26 X

27  Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employes,

creator or founder, substantial contributor or smployee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Fart Iff
28  Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,
instructions for applicadle filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, dirsctor, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes," complete Scheaule L, PartV ... ... SO URU 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a%? If "Yes," complete Schedufe L, Part IV 28b X
A 35% controlied entity of one or more individuais and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? 7
'Yes," complele Sehedule L, Part IV ... 28¢c | X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? "Yos," complete Schedule M ... 29 X
30 Did the organization recsive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
CONtridutions? if "Yes," complets Sehedule M ... . 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissoive and cease operations? Jf "Yes, ' complete Schedule N, Part! ... . 31 X
32 Did the organization seil, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? ff "vag," complete
Scheduie N, Part il ... e e B B 32 X
33 | X
34 | X
35a | X
35b| X
If "Yes, " complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 .. e e e e 36 | X
37  Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is reated as a parinership for federal income tax purposes? jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Vi .. ... |37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule C for Part VI, lines 11b and 197
Note: All Form 990 filars are required to complete Schedule O ... e iiieiiieenii .. e 38| X

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any ling in this Part V

1a Enter the number reportad in box 3 of Form 1086, Enter -0- if not applicable 1a

b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable ... 1b
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? ... ... ..o

132004 12-09-21 Form 990 (2021}




Form 990 (2021) PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 Page 5

rt Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance o iinyeq

2a Enter the number of employées reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tex Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organizatior file all required federal employment tax returns?
MNote: If the sum of lines 1z and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-fife. See instructons.
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross incorme of $1,000 or more during the year?
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? i “No" fo fine 3b, provids an explanation on Schedule O ... N
da At any time during the calendar year, did'the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other autherity over, a
financial account in a foraign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? .
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign eountry P
See instructions for filing requirements for FInCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts {FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax sheiter transaction at any time during the tax year?
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was oris a Party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? .
i *Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization fiie Formases-T2 N
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the arganization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? ST
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? e
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170{c).
a Did the organization receive a paymant in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor?
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? .
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
to file Form 82827 .. ... e e e e e ——— RS
d [If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filad during the year e Iid |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal bensfit contract?
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit cortract?
g If the organization received a contribution of gualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7
h If the organization received a centribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C7 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
SPeNsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49687
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?
10 Section 501(c}{7) organizations. Enter:
a Initfation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIl line12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 890, Part VIII, tine 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501{c){12} organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders e 11a
b Gross income from other sources. {Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts dus orreceived fromthemy 11b
t2a Section 4947(a)(1)} non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lfeu of Form 10417 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... ... L12b
13 Section 501(c){29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one stare? .
Note: See the instructions for additional infarmation the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health PINS 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reservesonhand .. 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indcor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filad & Form 720 1o report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule G ... 14b
15 Is the arganization subject ta the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?
If “Yes," complete Form 4720, Scheduls O.
17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified person, or mine operator engage in any

activities that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 48537
If "Yes,” complets Farm 6069.

132005 12-08-21
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0 (2021} PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701  pageb
Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and fora "No* response
to iine 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. Sse insiructions.

Chack if Schedule O contains a response or hote to enylineinthis Part VI ... o

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a

if there are material differences in voting rights among members of tha governing body, or if the governing
bady delegated broad authority to an executive commitiee or similar commities, explain on Scheduls 0.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 12, above, who are independent ... 1b
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3 Did the erganization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, trustees, or key ermployees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? ... & X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power io elsct or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? ... 7a X
b Are any govermnance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing bady?
8 Did the organizatior: contemporansousty document the meetmgs heid ar wrrﬁen acticns undertaken during the year by the fo!luwmg
a The governing body?
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employes listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannct be reached at the
organization's mailing address? /£ *Yes " provide the names and addresses on SchedUle O oo L:] X
Section B. Policies ry; secrion 5 requests information abgut goiicies not required by the Intemal Ravenue Gode.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? - i0b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing bedy before filing the form? _11a X
b Describe or Schedule C the process, f any, used by the arganization to review this Form 990, :
12a Did the organization have a written confiict of interest policy? f"No,"goto fine 13 .. .o 12a | X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to coenflicts? 2p | X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe

13
14
15

16a

on Schedufe O how this was done ... ORI

Di the organization have a written whistlablower OOy e
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by indepsndent

persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organizatior's CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | X
Other officers or key employees of the organization ... ... 15b | X
If "Y'es® to line 15a or 15b, describa the process on Schedule O, See instructions. '

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a -

taxable entity during the year?
If "res," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organrzatron to evaluate its partrcrpatron

in joint venture arrangements under applicable faderal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization's
exempt status with respect to such arrangements?

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed pWI

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 890, and 990-T {section 501 (C)(3)s only} available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

- Own website |:] Another's website - Upon reguest |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)

Describe on Schedule O whether {and if so, how) the crganization made its governing documerts, conflict of interest policy, and financial

statements available to the public during the tax year.
State the name, address, and telephons number of the parson who possesses the organization's books and records B

CHRISTINE HOLMES - 414-344-7676
833 NORTH 26TH STREET, MILWAUKEE, WI 53233-1507

132008 12-08-21 Form 990 (2021)




Form 890 (2021)

PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

39-1053701

Page 7

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Scheduie O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI

Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Section A. _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Compiete this table for all persons
® List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustoes

Enter -0- in colurmns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
@ List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key amployee."

® List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key emgloyee) who received report-
able compensatien (box 5 of Form W-2, Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1089-NEC) of mare than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist ali of the organization’s former officers, ke

reportable cormpensation from the crganization and any related organizations.

@ List all of the organizaticn’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustes of the organization,
mora than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

D Check this box if neither the crganization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
{whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.

Yy employees, and highest compensated employess who received more than $100,000 of

(A} (B} {C) (D) (E) {F)
Name and titls Average | .. notcnPe SKSII'E:]??than one Reportable Raportablie Estimated
hours per | bex, unless person is both an compensation cempensation amount of
week officer and & director/trustee) - from from related othear
(istany | & the organizations cornpensation
hours for % = organization {W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related | 2| & g (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | 3 £z 1089-NEG) and refated
below S1Et. | B8 = organizations
ine)  |E|2|E|5]55 5
{1) CHRISTINE HOLMES 36.00
PRESIDENT 4,00 X 172,434, 0. 8,277.
{2) JASON PARRY 1.00
Y2 DEVELOPMENT/COMMUNICATT 40.00 X 106,416, 0. 18,342,
(3} ANN BECKER 40.00
VP PROGRAMS X 112,764, 0. 7,041,
(4) PATTI DEW 40.00
CFO/VP ADMINISTRATION X 64,348. 0. 524,
(5} ALVARO ARAQUS 1.00
CHMAIRMAN 0.10 X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) XEITE SAISDEN 1.00
VICE CHAIRMAN 0.10|X X 0. 0. 0.
(7) JRFFREY BARTH 1.00
TREASURER 0.10 X X 0. 0. 0.
{8) DIANE RODGEAS 0.20
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. d.
(%) KARFEDA CHONEE AGUAM 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10) MICHASL BROPHY 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{11} DIRK CARSON 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(12) ERICRAJOY DANIELS 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{13) SHERRY HUSA 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(14) PETER DUBACK 0.20 |
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{15) PATRICK FENNELLY 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(16) VIKTOR GOTTLIEB 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(17} GAVIN HATTERSLEY 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.

132007 12-08-21 Form 990 (2021)
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PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

39-1053701

Page 8

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A} (B} (© B} {E) )
Name and title Average - ml‘: gfﬂ?gthan one Reportable Reportabie Estimated
hours per  f uox uniess person is both an compensation compensation amount of
weelk officer and a director/trustae) from from reiated other
{list any § the organizations compensation
hours for | £ = organization (W-2/1092-MISC/ from the
related | 3| & g {W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| 3 H g|e 1099-NEC) and related
below E(={.|258 = organizations
(18) BTEVE KEANE 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(19) PHYLLIS KING, PHD 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{20) JENNIFER LA MACCHIA 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(21) JEN MANCE 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(22} ROBERT MIKULAY 1.00
BIRECTOR 0.10 (X 0. 0. 0.
{23) DAVID NAVARRE 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(24} ANTHONY NGUYEN 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{25) GRECORY PIKE 0.20 |
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(26) JO ANN RATCHESON 0.20
DIRECTOR 0.10 |X 0. 0. 0.
b Subtotal | > 458,962. 0.] 34,184,
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, SectionA | g 0. 0. 0.
d Total{addlinestband1e} ... ... oo »- 458,962, 0. 34,184.

2 Total number of individuals (mcludmg but not limited to those fisted above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable

compensation from the organization B

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? jf "Yes,* complete Schedufe J for such individual

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the crganization

5 Did any person iisted on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? j "Yes *

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this tabie for your five highest compensated independent coniractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from

the arganization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A}

Name and business address

NONE

(B)

Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not fimited to those listed above) who received more than

$100.000 of compensation from the organization

0

SEE PART VII,

132008 12-09-21
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PENFTELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

39-10%3701

Form 980

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees /fcontinued)
73] (B} (€ (D} = (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours {check all that appiy) compensation compensation amount of
per from from related other
week g the organizations compensation
(list any § E‘ organization {W-2/1099-MISC) from the
hours for | S = (W-2/1089-MISC) organization
relatad |5 g and related
organizations é % g_ E organizations
below 22| B8] )
ing)  |EIE|E|Z|E|E
{(27) THERESA REAGAN 0.20
DIRECTOR 0.10 |X 0. 0. 0.
{2B) JOE SCHMTDT 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(29) SARAH SCHNEIDER 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{30) KATE SCHOVER 0.20
DIRECTOR 0.10 |X 0. 0. 0.
{31) JON SCHUMACHER .20
DIRECTOR 0.10 (X 0. 0. 0.
{32) PATRICIA SCHUYLER 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(33) CATHY WHITE 0.20
DIRECTOR 0.10 X 0. 0. 0.
(34) MADONNA WTLLIAME 1.00
DIRECTOR 0.10 X 0. 0. 0.
{35) DONALD WILSON 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(36) BETSY BROWN WYATT 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{37) JESSICA ZERATSKY .20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{38) RAHIM KEVAL 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
{39) SCOTT KOLODZINSKI 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(40) GENE MUELLER 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(41) STEVEN THOMAS 0.20
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.

Total to Part Vi, Section A, line 1c

132201
04-01-21




PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 35-1093701 Page 9
Siatement of Revenue

Form 990 (2021

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylneinthis Part VIIL .o iiiiians |:|
(A} B8) {C) (D} |
Total revenue Reiated or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded

function revenue |business revenue| rom tax under
sections 512 - 514

£# 1a Federated campaigns . [1a 484,024,
© b Membershipdues . 1b
"::_ ¢ Fundraisingevents 1c
-g d Related organizatons 1d 863,147.
o e Government grants (contributions) |1e| 1,724,386,
E T All other contributions, gifts, grants, and ]
E similar amounts not included above |46 3,881 ,661.
“E g Moncash contributians included in lines 1a-17 ig|$
S h_Total. Add lines 1a-1f 6
Business Code e R
@ | 2a PROGRAM SERVICE REVENU | 624100 [1,B37,536./1,837,536.
£ b
? c
E d
o f Al other program service revenue
g_Total. Add lines 2a2f p [1,837,536.
3 Investment income (inciuding dividends, interest, an
other similaramounts) B 2,643. 2,643,
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt band proceeds .
5  Royalties P ;
(i} Real (i) Personal
6a Grossrents Ga
b Less: rental expenses _ |6b
¢ RHental income or (loss) B¢
d Net rental income or {loss) ... ... s
7 a Gross amount from saies of () Securitie:
assefs other than inventory |7a
b Less: cost or other basis
1 and sales expenses b i
§ c Gainorfloss)  |7¢ i
& d Net gain or {loss) :
'g 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
Fal including % of
contributions reported cn line 1c). See
PartlV.line 18 8a
b Lless: directexpenses 8b
Net income or {loss) from fundraising events
9 a Gross income from gaming activiiies. See
Part W line19 Sa
b Less:directexpenses Sb
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
ard allowances ... . . 10a
lLess:cost ofgoodssold L 10b)
¢ _Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory
o Business Code
E 11 :
2
3 c
§ d Allotherrevenue .
e Total. Add lines tta-11d . ... .. |
12 Total revenue, Seeinstructions ... » [8,793,397.1,837,536, 0. 2,643,

132008 12-08-21 Form 990 (2021)
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PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

35-1093701

Page 10

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(cH3) and 501(c)4) organizations must complete all columns. Al other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not inciide amounts reparted on lines 6b, Total é)?genses Prngraﬁ’sewice Managégn)ent and Funcg.r)a)ising
7b, 8b, 3b, and 10b of Part \ill. expenseas aneral expenses EXpEnses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizaticns
and domestic governments. Sae Part 1V, ling 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
crganizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals, See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Benefits paid to or for mermbers
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 493 ,146. 493 ,14¢.
& Compensation nct inciuded above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persens described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Othersalariesand wages 3,664,933. 2,888,091. 776,842,
8 Pension pian accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b} employer contributions)
9 Otheremployeebenefits 703,324, 588,803. 114,521.
10 Payrolitaxes . .. 328,612. 281,897. 46,715.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Managerment 317,043, 27,698. 289,345,
b Legal
¢ Accounting
d bebbying . ... e
e Professional funaraising services. See Part IV, line 17
i Investment managementfees
g Other. (if line 11g amaouni exceeds 10% of line 25,
column {A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.
12 Adverising and promotion 64,288. 58,752, 5,536,
13 Officesxpenses . 289,105, 231,705, 57,400,
14 [nformation technology
15 Royalties
16 Occupancy ... . .. -1,177. 48 ,815. -49,932.
17 Travel 8B ,756. 84,915, 3,841,
18 Payments of trave! or entertainment expenses '
for any federal, state, oriocal public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 21,515, 15,253. 6,262,
20 Interest
21 Paymentsto affilates ..
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 156,676. 115,983, 40,693.
23 Insurance 90,997, 69,412,
24 Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered o
above. (List miscailaneous expenses on line 24a, If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a BAD DEBT EXPENSE 150,634. 150,634,
b MATNTENANCE AND REPAIRS 54,578, B3,730. 10,848.
¢« FOOD SERVICE 70,357. 64,398. 5,858,
d DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 6L,931. 17,282, 44,639,
e All other expenses -510,622. -510,622,
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 6,084,096, 5,220,524, 863,572, 0.
26  Joint costs. Complete this fine only if the organization

reporied in column {B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.

Check here B || if following S0P 96-2 (ASG 958-720)

132610 12-09-21
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Form 990

2021) PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

39-1093701 page 11

Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any iing in this Part X ... ..

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash -nordinterestbearing 551,174, 1 355,829,
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2,262,086.| 2 3,126,844,
3 Pledges and grants recelvable,net 841,832.| 3 2,784,985,
4 Accountsreceivable,net 135,850.) 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, dlrector -
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defineg
under section 4958(f){1)}, and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B} 6
n Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories for sale or use ) 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 1 5 1,074 g
10a Land, buildings, and equipmeant: cost or other
basis. Complete Part Vi of Schedule D 10a 1 176,809,
b Less: accumulated depreciation 10b 1,137,191. 253,939.1 10¢ 39,718
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 1
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, lne 0 12
13 Investmerits - program-related. See Part IV, ling 11 13
14  Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 fmust equal line 33) ... . . . 4 ,185,955.] 1 6,491,693,
17 Accounts payable and acorued expenses 390,781.0 17 390,394,
18 Grants payable
19 Deferred revenue
20 Tax-exemptbond liabiitles . ..
21 Escrow or custodial account {iability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D ____________
w 22 loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
:—% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unreiated third partiess
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payabies to related :hird
parties, and other liabilities not included on lires 17-24), Complete Part X
of Schedule D . 539,086.] 25 125,910.
26 _Total liabilities. Add fines 17 through 25 929,867
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here P T
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. S
§ |27 Net assets without donor restrictions 1,635,637, 2,355,767,
S |28 Net assets with donor restictions 1,630,451, 3,619,622,
g Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here [ 3 :l
t and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29  Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds
E 30 Paid-in or capital surpius, or land, building, or equipment furd
< |31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds
% 32 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances 7 3,266,088, a2 5,975,389.
33 = Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... .. 4,195,955, 33 6,491 693,

132011 12-08-21
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0 (20213 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pagei2
| Reconciliation of Net Assets
Chack if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylineinthisPart XI ... ..o [j
1 Total ravenue (must equal Part VI, column (&), line 12) 1 8,793,397,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part 1X, column (A), line 25) 2 6,084,096,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from fine 1 3 2,709 ,301.
4  Net assels or fund balances at beginning of year (must egua! Part X, line 32, column (A) ____________________________ 4 3,266 ,088.
5 Net unrealized gains {losses) on investments ) 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 linvestment expenses 7
8 Priorperiod adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund batances {explain on Schedule C} 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
OO (B} oo i 10 5,375,389,

Financia! Statements and Reporting
Check it Schedule O containg a response or note to any line in this Part XH oo

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: D Cash Accrua! l:l Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?

If "Yes," theck a box below to indicate whether the financial staternents for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

D Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?
If "Yes," check a box beiow to indicate whether the financial staterments for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:

D Separaie basis Consolidated basis D Both consolidated and separate basis
If "Yes" to line 2a cr 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent acecountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to underge an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Avdit
Actand OMB Circular A1337

If "Yes," did the organization undergo the raquired audit or aud|ts'? If the orgamzatlon did not Lindergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

X

3a

3b| X

Form 990 (2021)
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support b

(Farm 990) . s : o . 202 1
Gomplete if the organization is a section 501({c)(3) organization or a section
4947{a)(1} nonexempt charitable frust. y
Department of the Traasury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 980-EZ.
fntamal Revanua Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
Name of the organization ) Employer identification number
PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701

Reason for Public Charity Status. (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructians.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only ane box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){ 1)(A)().

2 D A school described in sectien 170{b)(1){A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E [Form 990).)

3 |:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){1)(A)ii).

4 |:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170{b}{1)(A)iii}. Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or aperated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b}{1)(A){iv}. (Compiste Part IL}

A federal, state, or iocal government or governmaenital unit described in section 170{b){1)(A}(v}.

An organization that normally receives a substantiat part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1}(A)vi}. (Complete Part I}

A community trust described in section 170(b){1)(A)(vi). {Complete Part L)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b}{1){(A)(ix} operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or tiniversity or a non-land-grarit college of agriculturs (see instructions}. Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

5

000 1

university: )

Ari prganization that normally receives {1} more than 33 1/39% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) nc more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax} from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.

See section 509{a)(2). (Complete Part (Il.)

11 I:f An organization organized and operated exclusively to tast for public safely. See section 509(a){4).

12 D An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions cf, or to carry out the purposes of one or
rere publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 50%(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a I:] Type 1. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported crganization{s) the power to regularly appoint or elact a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b r_—_[ Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or managernent of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c l:l Type il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s} {see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A,D,andE.

d D Type ll non-functionally integrated. A supporting crganization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generaily must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement {see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

& El Check this box if the organization received a written determination frem the IRS that it is a Type |, Type i, Type N
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

b

10

~h

Enter the number of supparted organizations

Provide the following information about the supporited organization(s).

(i) Narme of supparted {ii) EIN (iiiy Type of organization m(“'}o“frm;"g:ﬁ?:ﬂguﬁ gﬁnﬁl:g {v} Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of other
organization (described on lines 1-10 support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
s above (see instructions)) Yes No ppor ( ) |sueP

o]

Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 13201 01.04.22 Scheduie A (Form 990} 2021




Schedule A (Form 980) 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pagez
P | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A}(|v) and 170(b}{1}{A){v])

(Compilete only if you checked the bax on fine 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part IIl. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part /). )
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (o fiscal year beginning in} P> (a} 2017 (b} 2018 {c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e} 2021 {f} Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
fzation’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3

5 The poriion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) inciuded
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on fing 1,
column (f)

6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4.

Section B, Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p» (a} 2017 (b) 2018 {c} 2019 {d) 2020 {e) 2021 {f} Total
7 Amounts from ling 4

8 Gross income from intarest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

9 Netincome from unrelatad business
activities, whether or not the
business is reguiarly carried on

10 Otherincome. Do net include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (ExplaininPart Vi)

11 Toetal support. Add lines 7 through 10

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (sea instructions)

13 First Syears. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501{c}(3)

organization, check thisbox and stop here ... ... ... . .o pL
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Fublic support percentage for 2021 (lina 6, column (), divided by line 11, colurmn (f) . 14 %
15 Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 5 %

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and fine 14 is 33 1/3% or more, chack this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
b 33 1/3% support test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, chegk this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization o B D
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b and fine 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . B I::I
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 174, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meats the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the

organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization > D

Schedule A (Form 990} 2021
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Scheduls A (Form 990} 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pages
< Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the orgamza’uon failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed beiow, please complete Part J1.)
Section A. Public Support ‘
Galendar year {or fiscal year beginning in) b {a) 2017 (b) 2018 (Y2019 {d} 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. {Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 5921007.| 3665958.| 4017108.| 5730529.| 6953218.26287820.

2 Gross raceipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilites furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose | 2551950, ] 2495403.| 1644761.| 1138155, 1837536.| 9667805.

3 Gruoss receipts from activities that
are not an unreiated trade or bus-

iness under secticn 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended an its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines Tthrough5 . | B472957.] 6161361.| 5661869.| 6868684.| 8790754. 35055625
Ta Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons | 2400000, 800,000.| 2400000.| 5600000,

b Amounts included an iines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
axceer the greater of §5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year 0 a

cAddlnes7asnd7b | 2400000. 2400000.| 5600000,

8 _Public support. (sbiact ing 7 fram Iine ) 0355825,
Section B. Total Support

Galendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) B {a) 2017 (b} 2018 {c} 2019 (d} 2020 {e) 2021 {f) Total
9 Amountsfromine6 1 8472957.] 6161361.| 5661869%.| 6868684, 8790754.35955625.

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, rovalties,

and income from similar sources 60. 4,061. 2,828, 1,958, 2,643. 11,550.
b Unrelated business taxable income

(less section 511 taxes) from businessas

acquired after June 30, 1975
cAddlines 10aand 10b 60. 4,061, 2,828. 1,958. 2,643, 11,550.

11 Netincome from unrelated busmess
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon

12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part V1) ...

13 Total support. (addines s, 1oc, 11.ana12) | B473017.] 6165422.| 5664697.| 6870642, 8793397.R35967175.

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

check this box and stop here ... e et et S > |
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Putlic support percentage for 2021 (ine B, column ), divided by line 13, column (i) 15 84.40 %
16 Publiic support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part L, line 15 .. 16 89.86 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2021 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column m . 17 -03 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A, PartIll, line 17 18 .04 9

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2021. f the organizaticon did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and ling 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The arganization qualifies as a publicly supported crganization >

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2020. If the crganization did not check a bax on ling 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton . P |:|
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this bax and see instructions . ... | |:f
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Supporting Organizations

{Camplete enly if you checked a box in line 12 on Part |. If you checked box 12a, Part |, compiete Sections A

and B. f you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. K you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked hox 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and compiete Part V.
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? i 'No, " describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2}7 if "Yes, " expiain in Part VIl how the organization determined that the supported
organization was describsd in section 509(a)(7) or 2.

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(z)(4), (5), or (8)7 "Yes," answer
fines 3b and 3¢ balow.

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 50(c)(4), (5), or (6} and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509()(2)? Ir "ves," describe in Part V1 whan and how the
organization made the determination.

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(cH2}B}

purposes? ff "Yes, * explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? ff
“Yes," and if you checksd box 12a or 12b in Part |, answer fines 4b and 4c beiow,

b Did the organizaiion have uitimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organizaticn? Jf "Yas," describe in Part VI fow the organizalion had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

¢ Did the organization suppart any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 507(c){3) and 509(a){1} or 2)? If "Yes, " explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support io the foreign supported crganization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during ths tax year? ff "Yag,"
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provids detail in Part Vi, including () the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or remaved; (i) the reasons for each such action;
{iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authiorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

b Type | or Type W only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to

anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class

benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (i} other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? ff "Yas," provide detail in
Part VL.

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
{as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)}, a family member of a substantiai contributor, or & 35% controiled entity with
regard to a substantial contributar? jf vyeg, complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990),

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958} not described on line 77
If "Yes," complets Part | of Schedule L (Form 980y,

9a Was the organizaticn controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
In section 509(a)(1} or (2))? /f "Yas,* provide detai in Part VL.

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting crganization had an interest? jf 'Yes, " provide detail in Part VL.

¢ Did a disqualified person {as defined on line a} have an ownership interest in, cr derive any personal benefit
fromn, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VL.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdirigs rules of section 4943 because of section

4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? ff "Yas," answer line 105 below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (tUse Schedule C, Form 4720, to

— determine whether the organjzation had excess busingss holdings. ] 10b
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Supporting Organizations {continued)

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pPages
i >

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, efther alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?
b A family member 6f a person described on line 11a above?
¢ A 35% controlied entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? "Yes" to fine 11a, 11b, or 1ic, provide
detail in Part V1.

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or

more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at lsast a majority of the organization’s officers,
. directors, or trustees at ail times during the tax year? f "Ng, " describe in Part VI aow the supported organization(s)

effectively operated, supervised, or controfied the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint andfor remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supporied
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? [f "Yas," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operatsd,

nization

Yes | No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the diractors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s}? /f "No, " describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that conirolled or managed

ization(s!

__the supported argan
Section D. All Type Il Supporting Organizations

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i} a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iif) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

2 Woere any of the organization’s officers, directors, or frustees either () appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i} serving on the goveming body of a supported crganization? jf “No," explain in Part V1 how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supporied organizations have a
sigrificant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in diracting the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? ff "Yes, " describe in Part VI the rofe the organization's

Yes | No

<——SUpported organizations played in this ragard. _ _
Section E. Type Il Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisly the integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

a |:] The organization satisfied the Activities Test, Complete line 2 pefow,
b El The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 pelow.

¢ ] The organization supported & governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmenta entity (see instruction

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b bhelow.

a Did substantially all of the crganization’s activities during the tax year directly further the axempt purposes of
the supported crganization(s) to which the organization was responsive? jf "Yes," then in Part V| identify
those supported organizations and explain ow these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the prganization was responsive 1o those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted subsiantially all of its activities.

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement,
one or more of the organization's supported organization(s} would have been engaged in? Jf "Yes," explain in
Part ¥l ine reascns for the organization's position that its supported organization{s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's invofvement.

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, dirsctors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? ¥ "Yes" or "No" provide details i Part VI,

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of diraction over the poiicies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported crganizations? if “Yes," descritie in Part VI the rofe plaved by the.organization in this reqard,
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PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC

39-1093701 Page 6

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a){3) Supporting Organizations

D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov, 20, 1970 { explain in Part VI). See instructions.

All sther Type lll nen-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A} Prior Year

(B Current Year
{optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Hecoveries of prior-year distributions

QOther gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

L- I P [ B N I PR

@AW N |-

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for praduction or
collecticn of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

o

7

Other expenses (see insiructions)

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A} Prior Year

(B) Current Year
{(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempi-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a_Average monthly value of securities )
b Average monthly cash balances
¢ _Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets
d Total (add lines 1, 1b, and 1¢)
e Discount ciaimed for blockage or other factors
fpxnlajg_[n detail in Part VII:
2  Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets
3 __ Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4  Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 {for greater amount,
see instruciions). 4
5 Net value of nen-exempt-use assets (subtract fine 4 from ling 3) 5
6 Multiply line 5 by 0.035. 5]
7 Recoveries of prioryear distributions 7
8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 o ling 6) 8
Section C - Distributable Amouni Current Year
1 __Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A} 1
2 _Enter 0.85 ofline 1. 2
3 Minimum asset amount for grior year (from Section B, line 8, column A) 3
4  Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4
5 Ingome tax imposed in prior year 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temperary reduction (see instructions). 6 & :
7 D Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type lll supporting organization (see

instructions).
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2027 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 35-1093701 pagey
_|_Type lli Non-Functionaily Integrated 509(a){3) Supporiing Organizations {continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 _ Amounts paid to supperted organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to pérform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
arganizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Adrinistrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid 1o agquire exempt-use assets 4
5__ Qualifled set-aside amounts {prior IRS approval required - provide detajis in Part V1) 5
6 _ Other distributions {¢escribe jn Part V). See instructions. 6
7 _Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
____ lorovide details in Part V1). See instructions. 8
9 _ Distributable amount for 2021 from Section G, line & 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
0] {ii} (gi) o
. P . . . s istributi istributabie
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Unde';szgll)gt;tlons An!:::usunt for 2021
1 Distributable amount for 2021 frarm Section C, line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2021 (reason-
able cause required - expiain in Part VI). See instructions.

4]

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2021

From 2016

From 2017

From 2018

From 2018

From 2020

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2021 distributable amount

Carryover from 2016 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2021 from Section D,
line 7: %

a__Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b_Applied to 2021 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2021, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from fine 2. For result greater
than zero, sxplain in Part V1. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2021. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part V1. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2022. Add iines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown ofline 7:

Excess from 2017

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2020

Exgess from 2021

T@Q|™im e |0 |o|w

e

o & [0 | |w

Schedule A (Form 990} 2021
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Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part i, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;

Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, %a, 9b, 9c, t1a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section G,
line 1; Part I/, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1: Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines &, &, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional infoermation.

(See instructions.}
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- H B No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements QM2 No. 15
{Form 990} P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 202 1
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 111, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 880.
Internal Revenue Service P-Go to www.irs.gov/Form©90 for instructions and the latest information.
Name of the crganization Employer identification number
PENFTELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC ) 358-1093701

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the
organizatich answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

OB WN -

c 0 o

(a) Donor advised funds (b} Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year}
Aggregate valus of grants from (during vear)
Aggregate value at end of year B
Did the erganization inform ail donors and dcnor adwsors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?
Did the organization inform ail grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

l:j Yes 1:[ No

impermissible private benefit? ... [ Yes L INo

Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation sasements held by the organization {check all that appiy).

:‘ Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) |:] Preservation of a historically important fand area
I:[ Protection of natural habitat |:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

|:f Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the erganization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last
day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year

Total number of conservation easernents e 2a

Total acreage reslricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included infa} 2¢

Number of conservation easements included in () acquired after 7/25/06, and not cn a historic structure

listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year p

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located b
Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? D Yes ]:l Ne
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

»_

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of viclations, and entorcing conservation easements during the year

g

Does sach conservation eassment reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h{@)B)}

and section T70MMANBIIN? ... [Jves [ Ino

In Part Xill, describe hiow the organization repor'ts conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if appiicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the

organization's accounting for conservation sasements.
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

ta [f the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasuras, or other similar assets hetd for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XIll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b lf the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for putlic exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

() Revenue included on Form 890, Part VIl line1 B 3
(i} Assets included in Form 990, PartX L
2 |f the organization received or held works of art, hlstoncal treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 980, Part VIl line 1 B 3
b Assetsincluded inForm 890, Part X ... P 3
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 890) 2021
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Schedule D (Form 990} 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 page2
i | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets 3 (continued) '

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its

collection items {check ali that apply):
a l:f Public exhibition d D Loan or exchange program

[ Scholarly research e [ Other
1 Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpese in Part XH.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ... ... D Yes I___| No
Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Compiste if the organization answered "Yes" on Farm 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustes, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? E] Yes [ INo

Amount
€ Beginning balance ic
d Additions during the year | 1d
e Distibutions durdngtheyear * 1e
f Endingbalance if ‘
2a Did the organization |nciude an amcunt on Form 890, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? [:I Yes El No
b _If "Yes,* explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XHl E
Endowment Funds. Compiete if the organization answered "Yas" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a} Current year (b) Prior year {c} Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years hack

1a Beginning of vear balance
Contribufions

Nst Investment earnings, gains, and losses
Grants or scheolarships
Other expenditures for facilities

® oo o

and programs
Administrative expanses
g End of year balance

2  Provide the estimated percentage of the current vear end balance (line 1g, column (&) held as:
a Board designaied or quasi-endowment B %
b Permanent endowment b %
¢ Term endowment ¥ %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered far the organization

by: . Yes | No
(i} Unrelated crganizations 3a(i}
{ii} Related organizations 3afii)
b If "Yes" on line 3al(ii), are the related organizations Irsted as required on Schedule R'7 ____________________________________________________________ 3b
4__Describe in Part X/l the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
; Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complets if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 980, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other (b} Cost or other (c) Accumelated {d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a land
b Buildings
c leasehold improvements .
d Equipment 782,046, 777,994, 4,052,
e Other 394,863, 359,197. 35,666.
Total. Add lines 1athrough e (Column (d) must equal Form 990 Part X, colurnn (BL fine 100.) ..o N 39,718.

Scheduie D (Form 990) 2021
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Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12,

(a) Descripticn of security or category fincluding name of security) (b) Book value () Mathod of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial gerivatives . -

(2) Closely held equity interests

{3} Cther

(A

=]

(S

. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.)
Investments - Program Related.

Complete if the organizaticn answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, ling 11c. See Form 290, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment {b) Book value {c} Method of valuation: Cost or end-of year market value

{1}

2)

{3)

(4)

(5}

{6)

(7)

(8)

i) .
Totai. (Gol. (b) must equal Form 980, Part X, col. (B} line 13.) >
;| Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes® on Form 890, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

(1}

{2)

(3}

4

(5}

(6)

{7

(8)

9

Total. (Coiurnn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col, /B) fine 1 3 RO i i B

Other Liabilities.

Compiete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. . (a) Desgription of liability (b} Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
@ DUE TO INTERCOMPANY 125,810.
{3)
(@
(5)
(6)
7
{8}
@)
TYotal. (Column (h) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) fine 25.) oo oo oo > 125,910.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIH, provide the text of the footnote to the orgaruzatlon 5 Fnanmal statements that reporis the
prganization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASE ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XHI ..

Schedule D (Form 990} 2021
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 Page 4
, - | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 890, Part VI, ling 12;

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilites .~~~ 2b

© Recoveries of prioryeargrants L 2c

d Cther (Describein PartXilly ... . |ed

e Addfines 2athrough 2d
3 Subtractline 2efromline 1
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vi, fine 12, but not on line 1: /

a Investment expenses notinciuded on Form 690, Part VI, line7b 4a

b Other (Describein Part XIL) 4b

o Addlinesdaand db

5 _ Totaf revenue. Add lines 3 and 4e¢. (TH n 990 Partf, iine 120 e 5
Part Xll'| Reconciliation of Expenses per Audlted Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes"' on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 980, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilites .~~~ 2a

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

€ Otherlossas 2c

d Other (Describein Part XIL) 2d

e Addlines2athrough2d .
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on lineg 1:
& Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, ine 7b 4a

b Cther (Describe in Part XIIt) 4b
€ Add lines 4a and 4b

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 8; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, ling 4; Part X, line 2; Part X|,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also completa this part to provide any additional information.

PART X, LINE 2;

PENFIELD, FRIENDS OF PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER, INC., AND PMA ARE EXEMPT

ORGANIZATIONS FOR INCOME TAX PURPQSES UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF THE

INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. VMMS BUILDING CORP. IS AN EXEMPT ORGANIZATION FOR

INCOME TAX PURPOSES UNDER SECTION 501(C){(2) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.

PMA BUILDING, LLC AND PCC BUILDING, LLC ARE BOTH SINGLE MEMBER LLC

ENTITIES AND CONSIDERED DISREGARDED ENTITIES AND THEREFORE TAKE ON THE

501(C){(3) STATUS OF THEIR SOLE MEMBER, PENFIELD. THE ORGANIZATION IS

GENERALLY EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES.

THE ORGANIZATION FILES INFORMATION RETURNS IN THE U.8. FEDERAL

JURISDICTION AND THE STATE OF WISCONSIN. NONE OF THE ORGANIZATION'S FILED
132084 10-28-21 Schedule D (Form 990} 2021




Schedule D (Form 980} 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pages
XIll| Supplemental Information .. inueq)

INFORMATTION RETURNS ARE CURRENTLY UNDER EXAMINATION BY THE INTERNAL

REVENUE SERVICE OR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN. THE U.S. FEDERAL, INFORMATION

RETURNS FOR 2017 AND PRIOR HAVE PASSED THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR

AUDIT BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE. THE STATE OF WISCONSIN INFORMATION

RETURNS FOR 2016 AND PRIOR HAVE PASSED THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR

AUDIT.

Schedule D (Form 980} 2021
132055 10-2B-21



SCHEDULE J
(Form 990}

Compensation Information

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.
B Attach to Form 990.
P Gio to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

| OME No. 1545-0047

2021

Department of the Traasury
Internal Revenue Servica

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

35-1093701

PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC
Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 980,
Part VI, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
E First-class or charter travel
|:| Travel for companions
:l Tax indermnification and gross-up payments
CI Discretionary spending account

:I Heusing allowance or residence for personal use
Payments for business use of personal residence

|:f Health or social club dues or initiation fees

D Pearsonal services {such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b Fany of the boxes on lins 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No," complete Part ill to explain

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to estabiish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do neot check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ifl.

Compensation cornmittee
Independent compensaticn consuitant
D Form 880 of other organizations

I:I Written employment contract
Compensation survey or study
Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-contral payment?

¢ Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part 11,

Only section 501(cK3}, 501(c)(4}, and 501(c){29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
3 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or acerue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:

6 For persons iisted on Form 930, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compeansation
contingent on the net sarnings of:
a The organization?

b Any related organization?
If "Yes" on fine Ba or Bb, describe in Part Ml

7  For persons listed on Form 930, Part VI, Section A, Iine 1z, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments

not described on lines S and 67 If "Yes," descrbeinPart Ml

initial contract exception described in Regulations section: 53.4958-4(a)(3)? if "Yes," describe in Part Ili

9§ i "Yes' on line 8, did the organization also foilow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-8(¢)? ... L
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990} 2021

132111 13-02-21




1202 (066 Wiod) r alnpayag

tg-g0-1L gLlesl

(0]
]

{iiy
{0

{m
(0

[0}
0]

i

0]

0]
]
1]
(11}
)]
(1)
0
{H]]
1]
{m
{1
(0]
m
{m
i
(i}
)]
0 °0 ‘0 ‘D *0 0 0 (i IR
"0 "TTL 0BT *LLZ'8 * 0 "0 ‘0 *PERZLT | SEHI0H ENTLSINHD (1)
uonesuaduwlos uoesuadidoo
066 Wio4 Jolid uo ajqepodal AUy uonesusdwoa
poLaiap se papcds: uorEsUadWoD Jsuig (1} 2 snuog (1) eseq (1) 21l pue swen {v)
Rmv CEB_DO ui AQV.SAmU slijauag padalap laio CD_HMWCWQEOU

uoiesuadios ()

SULLIN{OD JO 10 (3)

s|qexeion (A}

puB awaliey (D)

D3N-660} 10/PUB DSIN-B60 L 10/PUE Z-A4 JO Usopyeasd (g)

ENPIAIDLY 12U 10} SJUNGLLE (3) PUE (() LWIN|0d 8(qeo)dde "BL 8L ‘Y L0128 ‘||A HEJ 086 WO 4O JUNCLIE 1210} 8 [enba jsniw [BNPIAIPLT PaLS!| Yoes Jof

() MOJ L0 'SUBRONISUL BU Ul PRQISIP 'SUCNEBZIUBEI0 Pale|al WO puE ()

-()(@) SULLN|OD jO WNS 3y 810N

lIA Hed ‘086 Lo Lo pajs]| L,uale 1BY3 S[ENPIAIPL AUE 1S|| 10U O

MOI L0 uoleziuefio sy Wolj Uoresuadwios Yodal ‘r anpayos uo pspods) 8 1SNl Uollesuadiliod 8s0UM [ERDIAIDLY 0B Bn_

‘papasu si soeds Jeuonippe I saidos sieoldnp sy Seeiojdwg pejesuadwoy Jsaybiy pue ‘seakojdluz sy ‘sesisnd) 'sJ010841Q “s192140

2 abeg

TOLEGOTI-6E

ONI MHINHD S, NZIIATIHD dTHIANIZJ

120z (086 Lo [ ajnpalog



LZ-g0-bL BHECEL

1202 (066 wiod) r 8|npaysg

*("TE¥DITddY SV¥) J4VLS ¥0d SHSVAHMDNI ANY 40 LNNOWY HHL

NV LaDdNdg JAAYLS TIVYIAO HHL SHAOMAAY CTIHIJANHAd A0 d¥YV0d HHI “dJ4YLS TI1I¥ H04

VW A9 HNOJd SYM ACQOLS LEMYVH TINA ¥ '6T0Z NI °HONYAIND IOUYM ONY AMVIYS dNVY

SNOTLIANOD LEMYVW NO dISYH dTATANZd ¥Od ¥VHA HOVH SHONVM AUYIVS AHL SMAIATYH

O57TY BHOMNOSHY NVHWNH 40 ¥dOLDH¥IA FHL *XTIVANNY NOILYSNIAWOD S, INICISHHEJ

HHL HENIW¥HLAT JTIIANED 40 HELETHWOD ZALLADHXA ANV QUVYOHd HHL 40 NVWHIVHD HHL

¢ ENIT ‘I I¥vd

‘uoijelliojul [euojiippe ALe 10} ped siuy 919|dwod osjy || Led 10} pUE ‘g pUe '/ ‘g9 'BQ 46 'BG ‘0% ‘Qp By 'T 'l ‘8| seUll '| Yed 10} pajnbal sUchdliosap Jo ‘uoieueicdE ‘UOITELLIOM; BU1 SPIACI

ugnewou| [ejuswasiddng

¢ abey

TOLEGOT 6L ONI ¥HLNHD S, NHYATIHD dTZIJANHEJ +€0Z (066 Wwiod) £ 8jnpalog



SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons | ovs . ses0ar
(Form 990} B- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 20 2 1
28b, or 28¢, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
Degariment of the Traasury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Internal Revenue Sarvice P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
Name of the organization Employer identification number
PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701
Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501(c)(4), and section 501 (©}{29) crganizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 980-E7, Part V, line 40b.
(b} Relationship between disqualified o ) d} Corrected?

person and organization {c) Description of transaction Yeos No

(a} Name of disgualified person

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
section 4958 ] -

Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.
Comnplete if the organization answered "Yes®' on Form 980-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 980, Part tV, line 26; or if the organization
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22.

(a) Name of (b) Relationship | (c) Purpose  [{d} Loantsor | (e) Original {f) Balance due (g} In ggf%gg{g"gf (i} Written
interested person with organization of loan Gr;;’i';;ﬁin? principal amount default? | conmites? | 20rEEment?
To_|From Yes | No [ Yes | No | Yes | No

Total

Grants or Assistance Benefltlng Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.

(a} Name of interested person {b} Relationship between (e} Amount of (d) Type of (e) Purpose of
interested person and assistance assistance assistance

the crganization

LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ. Schedule L (Form 990) 2021

132131 11-02-21




Schedule L (Forrm 990) 2021 PENFTELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pageso
f, Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes* on Form 990, Part IV, ling 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between interested {c) Amount of (d} Description of c(:?g);asr:}ggt?gno';
. person and the organization transaction transaction revenLes?
Yes No
DAVID NAVARRE ORGANTZATION DIRECT 6,398. ORGANIZATIO X

Supplemental Information.
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions}.

SCH L, PART IV, BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING INTERESTED PERSONS :

{(A) NAME OF PERSON: DAVID NAVARRE

(B) RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN INTERESTED PERSON AND ORGANTIZATION:

ORGANIZATION DIRECTOR

(D) DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION: ORGANIZATION DIRECTOR TS A PARTNER AT

THE LAW-FIRM OF GODFREY AND KAHN WHICH PROVIDES LEGAL SERVICES TQO THE

ORGANIZATION.

Scheduie L {(Form 990} 2021
132132 11-02-21




SCHEDULE O Supplemental Iinformation to Form 990 or 990-EZ e
(Form 990} Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 202 1
Form 990 or 880-EZ or to provide any additienal information. - I
Departrent of the Treasury P Aitach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Intarnal Revenue Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for the latest information. Hspectio
Name of the organization Employer identification number
PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1053701

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANTZATION MISSION:

FULL POTENTIAL THROUGH EDUCATION, THERAPY SERVICES, INCLUDING

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH SERVICES AND FAMILY PROGRAMS.

FORM 930, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

FORM 9390 IS REVIEWED BY THE MANAGEMENT OF PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER. THE

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS THEN RECEIVES A COPY OF THE 990

IN ORDER TO REVIEW AND SUBMIT QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS TO MANAGEMENT. UPON

SATISFACTORY RESOLUTION OF ANY QUESTIONS, FORM 990 IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE

FULL BOARD OF DIRECTORS. AFTER FINALIZING ANY QUESTIONS, FORM 990 IS FILED

WITH THE INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE.

FORM 980, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

BOARD MEMBERS AND KEY PERSONNEL COMPLETE A CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE

FORM ON AN ANNUAL BASIS. DISCLOSURES OF POSSIBLE CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ARE

REVIEWED BY THE CFQ/VP OF ADMINISTRATION. THE CFQ/VP OF ADMINISTRATION

NOTIFIES THE PRESIDENT AND CHATRMAN OF THE BOARD OF ANY SITUATIONS THAT

REQUIRE THEIR REVIEW. TF A CONFLICT OF INTEREST EXISTS FOR ANY BOARD

DISCUSSION, THE BOARD MEMBER(S) WILL BE RECUSED FROM DISCUSSION AND VOTING.

£

FORM 9390, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

THE CHATRMAN OF THE BOARD AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DETERMINE THE PRESIDENT'S

COMPENSATION ANNUALLY. THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES ALSQ REVIEWS THE

SALARY RANGES EACH YEAR FOR PCC BASED ON MARKET CONDITIONS AND SALARY AND

WAGE GUIDANCE. IN 2019, A FULL MARKET STUDY WAS DONE BY MRA FOR ALL STAFF.

THE BOARD OF PCC APPROVES THE OVERALL STAFF BUDGET AND THE AMOUNT OF ANY
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 880 or 990-EZ, Schedule O (Form 990} 2021
132211 31-11-21




Schedule O (Form 990) 2021 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-10983701

INCREASES FOR STAFF (AS APPLICARBLE).

FORM 930, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

ALL DOCUMENTS AS REQUIRED BY LAW ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST. THE

CONSOLIDATED AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE

ORGANTZATION'S WEBSITE.

FORM 950, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THE PROCESS FOR OVERSIGHT AND SELECTION OF AN INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

WAS UNCHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

132212 11-11-21 Schedule O {Form 990) 2021
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R {Form 990) 2021 PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701 pPages
Supplemental Information

Pravide additional information for responses to guestions on Schedule R. See instructions.

PART Il, TIDENTIFICATION OF RELATED TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATIONS:

NAME OF RELATED ORGANIZATION:

'PENFIELD MONTESSORI ACADEMY, INC.

PRIMARY ACTIVITY: K3 THROUGH 8TH GRADE MONTESSORI CHARTER SCHOOL FOR

CHILDREN OF ALL ABILITIES
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Fom 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an
(Rev. January 2022) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545.0047

i icati I .
Department of the Treasury B File a separate appiication for each return
Internal Revenus Service B Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 8-month automatic extension of time 1o file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Assooiated With Certain Personal Benafit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/e-tile-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax returmn other than Form 990-T (inciuding 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to fiie income tax returns.

Type or Name of exemnpt organization or other filer, see instructions. Taxpayer identification number (TIN}
print

- PENFIELD CHILDREN'S CENTER INC 39-1093701

ile by the

due date for [ Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.

flingvew | 8§33 NORTH 26TH STREET

return. See
instrusticns. [ City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.

MILWAUKEE, WI 53233-1507

Enter the Return Cods for the return that this application is for {ile a separate application foreachreturr) l 0 | 1 |
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code \lis For Code
Form 98C or Form 8980-EZ o] Form 1041-A G8
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 {other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 ik
Form 880-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12
Form 890-T {corporation) 07 :

CHRISTINE HOLMES
® The books are inthecareof pr 833 NORTH 26TH STREET - MILWAUKEE, WI 53233-1507

Telephone No. B> 414-344-7676 Fax No. b
® Ifthe organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox b D
® Ifthis is for a Group Retum, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this

box B D It it is for part of the group, check this box B |:| and attach a list with the names and TINs of all members the extension is for.

1 |request an automatic 6-month extension of time until NOVEMBER 15, 2022 tofiie the exempt organization return for
the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's return for:

| calendaryear 20271 or
[ tax year beginning , and ending

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: I:l Initial return E:f Final return
[ ] Change in accounting period

3a If this application is for Forms 890-PF, 980-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less

any nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a! 5 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 8069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpaymerit allowed as a credit. 3b | & 0.

¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c [ 8% 0.

Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal {direct debit} with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-TE and Form 8879-TE for payment
instructions.

LHA  For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2022)
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@ bakertilly

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consclidated financial statements of Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates and
subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows and functional
expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes o the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Compiroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internai control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's
abilities to continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global netwark of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which
are separate and independent legal entities. © 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professionat skepticism throughout the audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due fo fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

= Obtain an understanding of infernal conirot relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o  Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

«  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregale, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Supplemen tary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards and additional supplementary
schedules identified in the table of contents, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Reguiations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Regquirements for Federal Awards, and the
State Single Audit Guidefines, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Gevernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Sepiember 19,
2022 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an apinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Lufeor T Us, L2F

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
September 19, 2022




Penfield Children’s Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5464850 $ 6,048,180
Investments 6,236,247 5,563,824
Accounts receivable 178,042 139,046
Grants receivable 2,118,561 559,217
Contributions and pledges receivabie, net 4,092 111 927,423
Prepaid expenses 32,036 159,744
Property and equipment, net 5,565,828 4,426,651
Total assets $ 23,687675 § 17,824,085
Lizabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 565742 § 530,243
Grant funds received in advance 100,291 95,316
Notes payable 397,574 418,795
Total liabilities 1,063,607 1,044,354
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 14,520,140 11,178,970
With donor restrictions 8,103,928 5,600,761
Total net assets 22,624,068 16,779,731
Total liabilities and net assets $ 23687675 § 17,824,085

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets $
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows from
operating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Depreciation and amortization expense
Provision for doubtful accounts
Contributions and grants with donor resirictions for capital
expenditures and endowment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Contributions and pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Grant funds received in advance

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Payments for purchase of property and equipment

Net cash ilows from investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Cash received for capital expenditures and endowment
Proceeds from notes payable
Payments on notes payable

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 3

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures
Cash paid for interest

2021 2020
5,844,337 § 2,237,908
(427,217) (312,222)
278,898 257,653
3,700 4,250
(3,150,000) (20,500)
(38,996) 41,852
(909,344) (158,961)
(1,254,979) 615,168
127,708 (98,576)
35,499 23,054
4,975 8,581
514,581 2,598,207
5,534,820 2,521,219
(5,780,026) (3,033,769)
(1,418,075) (165,195)
(1,663,281) (677.745)
586,591 771,033
- 63,714
(21,221) (11,254)
565,370 823,493
(583,330) 2,743,955
6,048,180 3,304,225
5464,850 $ 6,048,180
$ 14,987 § 12,663
$ - $ 2,489

Cash paid for income taxes

See nofes lo consolidated financial statements
6
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Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Statement Preparation

The censolidated financial statemenis include the accounts of Penfield Children's Center, Inc., Friends
of Penfield Children's Center, Inc., VMMS Building Corp., Penfield Montessori Academy, Inc., PMA
Building, LLC and PCC Building, LLC (collectively, the Organization), after eliminating intercompany
accounts and transactions. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting. The significant accounting policies are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the consolidated financial statements to the reader.

Nature of Activities

Penfield Children's Center, Inc. {(Penfield) is an exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Its sole purpose is to help infants and young children with and without
disabilities reach their full potential through education, therapy services and family programs.
Annuaily, Penfield serves on average more than 1,500 children and their families. Penfield provides
Birth-to-3 services, child care, family services, a special care nursery, behavior clinic and outpatient
therapy services.

Friends of Penfield Children's Center, Inc. (Friends) is an exempt organization under section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. Its sole purpose is to provide support for Penfield and Penfield
Montessori Academy, Inc., through an annual fundraising event as well as other charitable
solicitations throughout the year.

VMMS Building Corp. is an exemnpt organization under section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Its sole purpose is to provide physical space for Penfield and Friends to carry out their
Missions,

Penfield Montessori Academy, Inc. (PMA) is an exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the
internal Revenue Code. PMA has a fiscal year end of June 30. PMA is a school for all abilities. It
opened in September of 2016, with three classrooms for children ages three to five in a Montessori
environment, with one additiona! classroom added for each subsequent school year. When fully
enrolted, PMA will have classrooms for three-year old kindergarten through eighth grade.

PMA Building, LLC is a limited liability company with one sole member, Penfield. its sole purpose is to
provide physical space for PMA to carry out ils mission.

PCC Building, LLC is a limited liability company with one sole member, Penfield. Its sole purpose is to
provide physical space for Penfield to carry out its mission.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the Organization considers all highly liguid
debt instruments purchased with maturity of three months or less and any certificates of deposit that
do not contain material early withdrawal penaliies to be cash equivalents.

Invesiments
Investments in equity securities and mutual funds are reported at fair value, with realized and

unrealized gains and losses included in the consolidated statements of activities. Investment return is
presented net of investment fees.




Penfield Children's Center, inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Organization follows current accounting guidance, which clarifies how organizations are required
to use a fair value measure for recognition and disclosure by establishing a common definition of fair
value, creating a framework for measuring fair value and expanding disclosures about fair value
measurements. Current accounting guidance establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include Level 1, defined as observable
inputs such as guoted market prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs cther than quoted
market prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable: and Level 3, defined as
unobservable inputs in which litile or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its
own assumptions.

Accounts Receivable

Contracts with patients and their caregivers that are considered exchange transactions are recorded
at the amount management expects to receive from the net transaction price. Balances are recerded
net of contractual adjustments for Medicaid and other third-party payors under terms of third-party
reimbursement agreements in effect. The Organization also reports accounis receivable net of any
implied discounts to determine the net transaction price.

Accounts recsivable are uncollateralized patient obligations; most of whom are local residents and are
stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. The Organization
follows up on past due amounts to reduce its exposure to potential uncoliectible accounts.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable represents the outstanding balance of government and other grants due to the
Organization based upon costs incurred, services completed and terms identified in the contacts,
Management determines the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
collection experience and a review of current grants receivable balances. Accounts writien-off are
charged against the allowance. No allowance for doubtful accounts is considered necessary as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give (pledges) are recognized as revenue in the period the promise is
received. Management considers alf pledges fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance is considered
necessary. Accounts written-off are charged against the allowance. Pledges are recorded as without
donor restrictions or with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. The Organization applies a discount rate on long-term pledges receivable, which is based
on treasury yield rates at the date of the giff.

Property and Equipment

Expenditures for land, equipment, building and improvements have been recorded at cost.
Depreciation on the building and equipment is computed on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Donations of land, building and equipment are recorded as
contributions at their estimated fair values at the date of the donation. Such donations are reported as
increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset for
a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of
cash that must be used to acquire land, building and equipment are reported as contributions with
donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Crganization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired
assets are placed in service. The Organization reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions at that time.

The Organization follows a policy whereby items having a cost of less than $5,000 are charged to
operations in the year of purchase.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Organization reviews long-lived assets, including property and equipment and intangible assets,
for impairment whenever events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the
estimated future cash flows from the use of the asset are less than the carrying amount of that asset.
To date, there have been no such losses.

Environmental Remediation Liability

The Organization purchased land in 2018 adjacent to its current building for future use. During 2018,
site investigation activities were undertaken to determine if remedial action was required prior to
further use of the land. As of the date of this report, no potential environmental remediation has been
identified and the Organization continues to test the site until full clearance is provided.

Advertising Expense

It is the policy of the Organization to expense advertising as it is incurred. Advertising for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $132,121 and $138,931, respectively.

Net Assets

The Organization presents its consolidated financial statements in accordance with current accounting
guidance, under which the Organization is required to report information regarding its consclidated
financial position and activities according to classes of net assets as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions. Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations or time restrictions. The Organization's Board of Directors has the ability to designate
net assets without donor restrictions to be used by management for specific future projects or
activities. These designations can be modified or removed by the Board of Directors at any time.
There were no designations of net assets without donor restrictions as of December 31, 2021 and
2020.

Nef Assets With Donor Restrictions. Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that expire
by passage of time, can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization pursuant to those
stipulations or that they be maintained in perpefuity by the Organization.

Contributions and Grants

Unconditional contributions or grants are recognized when cash, securities, other assets or promises
to give are received. Conditional contributions or grants, that is, those with a measurable performance
or other barrier and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend
have been met. Most of the Organization's federal, state and other grants or contracts are conditioned
upon certain performance requirements and the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 there was approximately $4,057,000 and $2,676,000 of conditional
grant revenue, respectively, which is expected to be recognized in subsequent years when the
conditions are met.

During 2021 and 2020, $100,291 and $95,316, respectively, had been received in advance and are
included within grant funds received in advance on the consolidated statements of financial position.
These amounts consist of cash received from state aid in advance of the upcoming semester at PMA
and are recognized in the subsequent years when the semester is finished.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded in the period received. All
centributions restricted for a specific purpose by a donor are recorded as contributions with donor
restrictions. When a donor restriction is met or expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. All grants with government agencies are reported as
without donor restrictions when the Organization satisfies any conditions.

Contracts with Customers

A portion of the Organization’s revenues resuits from the sale of goods and services under contracts
with customers. Revenue under contracts with customers is recognized when the customer obtains
control of the good or service and is recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or services in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goads ar services.

A performance obligation is a distinct good, service or a bundle of goods and services promised in a
contract. The Organization identifies performance obligations at the inception of a contract and
aliocates the transaction price to individual performance obligations to appropriately depict the
Organization's performance in transferring control of the promised goods or services to the cusiomer,
Contracts with customers do not include a significant financing component.

Service feos: Service fees revenue consist of revenues relating to the Organization’s therapies and
behavior clinic services. The performance obligation is to perform the indicated services for the
customers under the contract. Revenues are recognized at a point in time as services are provided to
the customer, which are then billed by the Organization to the customer or third party payor. Service
fees revenue consist of contracts with individual patients and their caregivers that are mostly insured
by Medicaid/Medicaid HMO. The other contracts within service fees are for commercially insured
individuals and private pay individuals. The Organization reviewed contracts using a portfolio
approach for individual patients due to similarities in contracts.

The Organization records service fees revenue from these contracts at an amount that reflects the
consideration which it expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for the services provided. The
trartsaction prices are generally listed in the contracts or individual client agreements. The
Organization determines the net transaction price based on contractual adjustments under terms of
third-party reimbursement agreements, a review of patient balances and the likelihood of payment
based on historical experience as well as specific patient circumstances. The stated and implied
discounts for service fees revenue is approximately 35.3% and 37.8% in 2021 and 2020, respectively,
from the stated gross charges. Revenue recognized from service fees was $375,905 and $385,077 in
2021 and 2020, respectively, .

Child Care: The Organization provides child care services and the related revenue for these services
is included in service fees and child care on the consolidated statements of activities. The
Organization and parents have agreements determining the service to be provided and fee. The
parents make payments monthly in the form of cash or government voucher subsidies. The services
are provided over time as children are cared for each day. Revenue is recognized as the services are
provided. Revenue recognized from child care was $642,896 and $755,338 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

There are no expressed or implied warranties. There is no revenue recognized for services performed
in prior periods. There are no contract assets or liabilities with these revenue sources.

Service fees and child care presented on the consolidated statemenis of activities also includes public
support from other grants. These granis are recognized when the conditions on which they depend
have been met. Revenue recognized from other grants within service fees and child care are
$684,162 and $705,993 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Income Taxes

Penfield, Friends and PMA are exempt organizations for income tax purposes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the iInternal Revenue Code. VMMS Building Corp. is an exempt organization for income tax
purposes under Section 501(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code. PMA Buiiding, LLC and PCC
Building, LLC are both single member LLC entities and considered disregarded eniities and therefore
take on the 501(c)(3) status of their sole member, Penfield. The Organization is generally exempt from
federal and state income taxes. '

The Organization files information returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and the State of Wisconsin.
None of the Organization's filed information returns are currently under examination by the Internal
Revenue Service or the State of Wisconsin. The U.S. Federal information returns for 2017 and prior
have passed the statute of limitations for audit by the Internal Revenue Service. The State of
Wisconsin information returns for 2016 and prior have passed the statute of limitations for audit.

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

The Organization follows current accounting guidance, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in the Organization's consolidated financial staiements. The codification
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The codification also
provides guidance on derecognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken
in & {ax return.

The Organization did not have unrecognized tax benefits or obligations as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 and does not expect this to change significantly over the next 12 months. The Organization will
recognize interest and penalties, if any, associated with the Organization's tax positions as a
component of unrelated business income tax expense on the consolidated statements of activities. As
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization has not accrued tax, inferest or penalties refated to
uncertain tax positions.

The Organization had no unrelated business income tax in 2021. The Organization paid $2,489 for
Wisconsin unrelated business income tax for employee parking benefits in 2020. The Federal tax law
was amended and the Organization amended the 2018 990-T {o receive a refund. The Organization
had income tax expense $8,210 in 2020, which includes $5,721 in expense to write off 2018 and 2019
refunds expected for State of Wisconsin unrelated business income which were determined to be
nonrefundable.

Grant Funds Received in Advance

Grant funds received in advance at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consists of cash received from state
aid in advance of the upcoming semester at PMA.

Volunteer Services

Donated services are reported as contributions when the services (a) create or enhance non-financial
assets or (b) would be purchased if they had not been provided by contribution, require specialized
skills and are provided by individuals possessing those skills. During 2021 and 2020, the Crganization
benefited from 1,629 and 2,455 volunteer hours, respectively, that do not meet the requirements for
recognition in the consolidated financial statements.

Donated Materials
The Organization receives donated materials, which are primarily used for fundraising events or
distributed to people in need of those materials. It is not the Organization's policy to record and value

immaterial items which are distributed. items donated and used by the Organization are recorded at
their estimated fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs, management and general, and development
and fundraising. Expenses related to more than one function are charged to programs, management
and general, and development and fundraising on the basis of full time equivalents, square fooiage,
number of meals served and clinical records. Information technology and services expenses are
allocated based on supported full time equivalents. Facility operation expenses are allocated based on
square footage utilization. Kitchen staff and supplies are allocated based on meals served. Clinical
records expenses are allocated based on number of documents administered per year. Management
and general expenses include those expenses that are not directly identifiable with any other specific
function but provide for the overall support and direction of the Organization.

Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assels and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Aciual results could differ from those estimates.

Liguidity and Availability of Resources
The following reflects the Organization's financial assets, reduced by amounts not available within one

year for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions. Amounts not available
include receivables coflectible beyond one year and amounts set aside for long-term investing at

Friends,
2021 2020
Total assets, af year-end $ 23687675 $ 17,824,085
Less non-financial assets:
Property and equipment, net (5,565,828) (4,426,651)
Prepaid expenses (32,036) (169,744)
Financial assets, at year-end 18,089,811 13,237,690
Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year,
due to:
Restricted by donor with purpose restrictions (2,718,440) (3,733.030)
Contributions and pledges receivable subject to appropriation
and satisfaction of donor's restriction (1,777,925) {276,192)
Contributions and pledges receivable collectible beyond one
year without a purpose restriction . (2,050,000) (75,000
Long-term investments {6,236,247) (5,663,824)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 5307,199 § 3,589,644

The Organization's practice is to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, ligbilittes and other abligations come due. The Organization has secured all major
contracts through 2022 including the Charter School contract which the amount is dependent on the
number of students enrolled; Milwaukee County Department of Human Services for $1,400,196; and
year one of the SAMHSA five year grant for $1,905,770. In addition, the Organization has a $500,000
line of credit available to be used, if needed.
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December 31, 2021 and 2020

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

During September 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2020-07, Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for
Contributed Nonfinancial Assets (ASU No. 2020-07). ASU No. 2020-07 improves financial reporting by
providing new presentation and disclosure requirements about contributed nonfinancial assets,
including additional disclosure requirements for recognized contributed services. The standard will be
required to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning after June 15, 2021 (2022). The
Organization is currently assessing the effect that ASU No. 2020-07 will have on its consolidated
financial statements.

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU No. 2016-02), that
amends the treatment for leases. The new accounting model for ieases capitalizes all leases greater
than twelve menths, both capital and operating, as assets and liabilities on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Not-for-profit entities will be reqguired to apply the standard for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2021 (2022). The Organization is currently assessing the effect that
ASU No. 2016-02 will have on its consoiidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 19, 2022, the date which the
consolidated financial statements were approved and available to be issued.

2. Cash and Credit Risk

The Organization uses financial institutions in which they maintain cash balances that, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

3. Investmenis

The Organization invests in equity securities and mutual funds which are reported at their aggregate fair
value.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, all investments are classified as Level 1 investments, for which fair
value is measured based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. The fair value of
investment securities by major security type and class of security as of December 31 is as follows:

2021 2020
Classification Type:
Bond Funds $ 202639 §% 1,576,388
Equity Funds 4,209,852 3,987,436
Total $ 6,236,247 % 5,563,824
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4. Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Contributions and pledges receivable are expected to be realized in the following periods:

2021 2020
Less than one year $ 1,197,425 § 665,578
One to five years 2,987,500 276,000
Subtotal ‘ 4,184,925 941,578
Less discount for present value 7 {92,814) (14,155)
Total $ 4092111 % 927,423

5. Property and Equipment, and Depreciation

Depreciation and amortization is calculated on the straight-line method using the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 31-33 years
Parking lot and land improvemenis 10-20 years
Equipment, software and vehicles 4-10 years

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

2021 2020

Land 3 318,440 % 344,324
Building and improvements 9,085,895 7,734,697
Parking lot and land improvements 1,361,815 1,234,850
Office equipment 772,707 807,011
Software 354,863 354,863
Vehicles 112,553 112,553
Other 40,000 40,000

Subtotal 12,046,273 10,628,198
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {6,480,445) {6,201,547)

Total 5 5,565,828 § 4,426,651

Depreciation and amortization expense were $278,898 in 2021 and $257,653 in 2020,
6. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

At December 31, net asséts with donor restrictions consisted of:

2021 2020
investment earnings on endowment $ 211,496 % 101,061
Purpose and time restricted coniributions ‘ 7,069,832 4,683,600
Endowment Fund, principal to be invested in perpetuity, income to
be used for general operating purposes 822,600 816,100
Total $ 8103928 § 5,600,761

16




Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

7. Endowments

The Organization's endowment fund consists of a general donor endowment. General endowment funds
have been received from a donor for endowment purposes and the earnings may or may not be restricted
for a specific purpose.

The Board of Directars undersiands that the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
{UPMIFA) is the applicable state law governing their endowment funds. UPMIFA laws have been
interpreted by the Board of Directors as allowing the appropriation for expenditure for the purposes for
which an endowment is established as the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, in the fair valus of an
endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund as is prudent under ordinary business care
considering the facts and circumstances prevailing at the time the action is taken.

The investment policy has been established by the Organization for endowment assets that attempts to
provide a predictable stream of funding to the programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
preserve the purchasing power of the endowment assets. The purpose of the Organization's investment
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, is to provide guidelines for investment and performance of
investments, of endowment funds that protect principal, grow the aggregate portfolio value in excess of the
inflation rate, reach an effective annual rate of return that is equal to or greater than the designated
benchmarks for the various types of investment vehicles, and to ensure that any risk assumed is in line
with the given investment vehicle and the Organization’s objectives.

The endowment assets are governed by a spending policy that seeks to distribute a specific payout rate
from the endowment base to support the programs. Income from the fund will not be available for payout
until the first day of the calendar quarter afier the fund reaches a fair value documented in each fund
agreement. The endowment base is defined as the rolling average of fair value for the most recent 20
guarters. The payout rate is 5 percent of the endowment base annually. The payout will not reduce the
endowment principal below its original contributed value.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund consists of the following at December 31:

2021
Accumulated Total
Criginal Gift Gain Endowment
Donor restricted % 812,600 $% 211,486 $ 1,024,006
2020
Accumulated Total
Original Gift Gain Endowment
Donor restricted $ B0G,100 $ 101,061 § 907,161
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Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended December 31, are as foliows:

With Donor Restrictions

Accumulated Total
Original Gift Gain Endowment
Endowment net assets, as of
January 1, 2020 $ 757,775 % 43629 § 801,404
Contributions 48,325 - 48,325
Investment income, net of fees - 57,432 57,432
Endowment net assets, as of
December 31, 2020 $ 806,100 $ 101,061 § 207,161
Endowment net assets, as
of January 1, 2021 3 806,160 % 101,061 % 807,161
Contributtons 6,500 - 6,500
Investment income, net of fees - 110,435 110,435
Endowmeni net assets, as of
December 31, 2021 $ 812,600 § 211,496 § 1,024,096

In addition, the endowment consists of a pledges receivable of $10,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
8. Paycheck Protection Program

In April 2020, Penfield and PMA received proceeds in the amount of $980,700 and $296,200, respectively,
under the Paycheck Protection Program {(PPP) which was established as part of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act and is administered through the Smaill Business
Administration (SBA). The PPP provides loans to qualifying non-profit organizations in amounts up to 2.5
times their average monthly payroll expenses and was designed {o provide a direct financial incentive for
qualifying non-profit organizations to keep their workforce employed during the Coronavirus crisis. PPP
loans are uncollateralized and guaranteed by the SBA. Advances from the PPP are forgivable after a
‘covered period” (eight or twenty-four weeks) as long as the borrower maintains its payroll levels and uses
the proceeds for eligible expenses, including payroll, benefits, mortgage irderest, rent, and utilities. The
forgiveness amount will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces salaries and wages
more than 25% during the covered period. Penfield and PMA initially recorded the funds as a refundable
advance and will record the forgiveness in accordance with guidance for conditional contributions when
there is no longer a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return of the PPP loan, or
when such conditions are explicitly waived.

As of December 31, 2020, Penfield and PMA had expended all of the PPP funds received on qualified
expenses and believed that it met all of the conditions attached fo the PPP, therefore, the Qrganization
recorded grant revenue of $1,276,900 within its consolidated statements of activities for the year-end
December 31, 2020. There is no PPP activity reflected in the 2021 consolidated financial statements.

In January 2021, Penfield and PMA received notice from the SBA that it has forgiven all of the PPP
proceeds received by Penfield and PMA. The SBA reserves the right to audit any PPP loan, regardless of
size. These audits may occur after forgiveness has been granted. In accordance with the CARES Act, all
borrowers are required to maintain their PPP loan documentation for six years after the PPP |oan was
forgiven or repaid in full and to provide that documentation to the SBA upon request. The Organization
does not believe the results of any audits or reviews by the SBA would have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

18




Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

10.

Employee Retention Credit

The Employee Retention Credit (ERC), which was included as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security (CARES) Act and amended by the Consolidated Appropriations Act (CAA), the
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IlJA), incentivizes
employers severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to retain their employees when they might
otherwise find it difficult to do so. The fully refundable tax credit is allowed against the employer's share of
employment taxes for qualified wages paid after March 12, 2020 and before October 1, 2021. Credits in
excess of the tax amounts paid by an employer are treated as overpayments and are also refunded to the
employer. The ERC is calculated as a percentage of qualified wages (as defined in the CARES Act, as
amended) paid by an eligibie employer. In 2021, the Organization qualified for the ERC as it experienced
a significant decline in gross receipts (for 2021, defined as a 20% decline in gross receipts when
compared to the same quarter in 2019). The Organization averaged more than 100 full-time employees
(FTEs), but less than 500 FTEs during 2019, therefore, it was considered a small employer during 2021.
As a small employer in 2021 all of the Organization’s otherwise qualified wages were eligible. The
Organization did not qualify for the ERC in 2020. For 2021, the ERC equaled 70 percent of an employee’s
qualified wages up to $10,000 per employee per calendar quarter with a maximum annual credit of
$21,000 for each employee.

The Organization accounts for this federal funding in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 958-605 guidance for conditional contributions and, accordingly, revenues are
measured and recognized when barriers are substantially met. The Organization claimed credits of
$1,115,677 on amended forms 841 which are included in contributions and other grants in the
consolidated statements of activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021,
the Organization had an ERC receivable of $1,115,677 included in grants recenvable on the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Lease Commitments

The Organization ieases certain office equipment and parking lot space under operating lease agreements
with various expiration dates through 2023. Lease expenses for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 were $20,418 and $15,444, respectively.

A summary of the future minimum lease payments required under the non-cancelable operating leases is
as follows:

Years ending December 31:

2022 ‘ $ 1,686
2023 843
Total $ 7,303

19




Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

11. Concentration of Risk

The Organization receives grants from various government agencies whose programs rely on the
avalilability of funding from the United States government. Approximately 14% and 12%, of the
QOrganization's fotal public support and revenue is from school grants for 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Milwaukee County contract accounts for 11% and 16% of total public support and revenues for 2021 and
2020, respectively,

Two donors account for 87% and three donors account for 48% of the Organization's total outstanding
contributions and pledges receivable at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. in 2021 and 2020, the
aforementioned donors accounted for 35% and 12% of total public support and revenues, respectively.

The Organization received a significant amount of contributions and other grants revenue in 2021 and
2020 from various federal government coronavirus relief programs. See Notes 8 and 9 for additional
information. .

12. Units of Service
Milwaukee County confracted to purchase 90,000 and 100,000 units of service from the Organization
under the Wark and Day - Children's Services program contract for 2021 and 2020, respectively. The
Organization provided 88,622 and 95,001 units of service for clients in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

13. Donated Services, Materials and Equipment

The value of donated services, materials and equipment included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding expenses for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

2021 2020
Advertising 3 45741 § 59,560
Fundraising events - supplies 58,977 43,812
Child care and technology - supplies 18.007 20,487
Consulting services - 8,925
Total 3 122725 5 132,784

ttems donated and sold at the Pink Tower and Croguet Ball Auctions are recorded at their realized value
of $58,977 and $43,812 for 2021 and 2020, respectively, and included in contribution revenue on the
consolidated statements of activities.

14. Employee Retirement Plan

The Organization has a 403(b) employee retirement plan for eligible employses. The Organization
maiches employee contributions up to 3 percent of the employee's gross wages. The Organization did not
confribute to the plan during 2021. The Organization’ contributed $110,647 to the plan during 2020,

15. Notes Payable

In June 2016, the Organization entered into a demand line of credit agreement with a financial institution.
The line of credit has a limit of $500,000. The line is secured by all business assets. The interest rate on
the line is Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 0.05 percent. The line does not have an expiration date,
however, the financial institution can notify the Organization to pay any outstanding balance within ninety
days and terminate the line. The line has an outstanding balance of $0 at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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In 2019, a line of credit for construction for a parking lot was taken out by PCC Building, LLC with a
financial institution. The line of credit was converted to an unsecured note payable on July 26, 2018, The
note payable had an outstanding balance of $397,574 and $418,795 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Interest expense was $14,987 and $12,663 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. The parking lot
was placed into service in 2020. Monthly interest payments are due with an interest rate of LIBOR plus
1.25 percent for the first 12 months of the note. Beginning August 1, 2020, the interesf rate changed to a
fixed 3.95 percent for the remainder of the note, principal and interest is payable in 59 monthly
installments of $3,292 with a final payment equal to all unpaid principal and accrued interest due July 1,
2025. Future principal payments on the note payable for the years ending after December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

Years ending December 31:

2022 3 24,017
2023 24,997
2024 25,978
2025 322,582

Total 3 397,574

During March 2022, the Organization prepaid $200,000 of principal on the notes payable.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

Financial awards from federal, state and local governments in the form of grants are subject to special
audit. Such audits could result in claims against the Organization for disallowed costs or noncompliance
with grantor restrictions. No provision has been made for any liabilities that may arise from such audits
since the amounts, if any, cannot be determined at this time.

The Organization is a defendant in lawsuits. The final results of such litigation cannot be determined at
this time. in the opinion of management, any uitimate liability in the lawsuits would either be within
insurance limits or would have no adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Report on internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
With Government Auditing Standards

independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gavernment Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consclidated financial statements of Penfield Children's
Center, inc. and Affiliates (the Organization), which comprise the Organization's consolidated statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 19, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, o prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such thal there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. © 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, confracts, and grant agresments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the consolidated financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reportad under
Government Audifing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinien on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Bofer Tibly U5, L2F

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Seplember 19, 2022
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Report on Compliance
for Each Majer Federal and Major State Program and Report on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Guidelines

Independent Auditors® Report

To the Board of Directors of
Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and Major State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and Mafjor State Program

We have audited Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates’ {the Organization) compiiance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the State
Single Audit Guidelines (the Guidelines) that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal and major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2021. The
Organization's major federal and major state programs are identified in the surnmary of auditors’ results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in alf material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and major state programs for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and Major State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Government Auditing Standards); the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and the Guidelines. Cur
responstbilities under those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the Guidelines are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal and major state program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, s a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are
separate and independent legal entities. ® 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Other Matter - Federal and State Expenditures Not Included in the Compliance Audit

The Organization’s basic consolidated financial statements include the operations of the subsidiaries of the
Organization, as identified in the notes to the schedule of federal and state awards, which expended $879,412
in federal awards and $1,267,798 in state awards which are not included in the Organization's schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards during the year ended December 31, 2021. Our compliance audit,
described in the "Opinion on Each Major Federal and Major State Program,” does not include the operations
of the subsidiaries of the Organization, as identified in the notes to the schedule of federal and state awards
because they have separate audits under the Uniform Guidance and the Guidelines or do not require an audit
under Uniform Guidance and the Guidelines.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal contral over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization's
federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on
the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the Guidelines will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred o above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the
Organization’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal and major state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and
the Guidelines, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

=  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and repert on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the Guidefines, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on internal Control Over Compliance

A dsficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
or state program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be
prevented, or detected and correcied, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contral over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control aver compliance, yet important enough o merit aftention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of infernal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our {esting of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and the Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is nof suitable for any other purpose.

BLofor. Tibl us, L2 F
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
September 19, 2022
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Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Assistance  Pass-Through
Federal Awards Listing Entity's Federal Subrecipient
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Entity/Program Titfe Number Number Expenditures Awards

U.S. Department of Agricuiture:
Passed through Wisconsin Department of Public
Instruction:

COVID-19 Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 Not availabie § 57,691 § -

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through Milwaukee County - Department o1
Human Services:

Special Education, Grants for Infants and Families 84.181 40-17898-100 643,366 -

U.8. Depariment of Health and Human Services:
Direct award:

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services,

Projects of Regional and National Significance 93.243 Not applicable 399,718 9,374
Passed through Acelero:
Head Start 93.600 05H90032 211,107 -
Total Head Start Cluster 211,107 -
Passed through Wisconsin Department of Health
Services:
Medicai Assistance Program 93.778 Not availabls 63,411 -

Passed through Milwaukee County - Department of
Human Services;

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 40-17898-100 284,301 -
Total Medicaid Cluster 347,712 -
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human

Services 858,537 9,374
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 1,659,594 § 9,374

Pass-Through
State Awards State ID Entity's State Subrecipient
State Grantor/Pass-Through Entity/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Awards’

Wisconsin Depariment of Health Services:
Passed through Milwaukee County - Depariment of
Human Services:

Birth i Three 435.550 40-17898-100 % 738,028 % -

Direct award:
Medical Assistance Program Unknown Not appiicable 28,632 -
Total Wisconsin Department of Health Services 767,560 -

Wisconsin Department of Ghildren and Families:
Direct award:

Child Care Counts Payment Program Unknown Not applicable 111,295 -

Total expenditures of state awards $ 878,955 § -

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards
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Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the schedule) includes the
federal and state award activity of Penfield Children’s Center, Inc. and Affiliates (the Organization) under
programs of the federal and state government for the year ended December 31, 2021. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regufations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit Guidelines {Guidelines). Because the
schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Organization.

Management reviews the expendituras of federal and state awards for each entity that comprise the
Organization and determines if a separate audit is required under the Uniform Guidance and the
Guidelines. Expenditures for the following consolidated subsidiaries of Penfield Children's Center, inc. are
not included to meet the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the Guidelines because they have
separate audits under the Uniform Guidance and the Guidelines or do not require an audit under the
Uniform Guidance and the Guidelines:

Friends of Penfield Children's Center, Inc. VMMS Building Corp. PCC Building, LLC
Penfield Montessori Academy, Inc. PMA Building, LLC

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accruai basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance and the
Guidelines, wherein certain types of expendiiures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Indirect Cost Rate

The Organization has elected not io use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Noncash Awards
The QOrganization did not receive any non-cash federal awards.

State ID Numbers
The Organization received state funding and some of the funders did not provide the state identification
number. The state amounts are presented as "unknown" and are known to originate from the Wisconsin

Depariment of Health Services and the Wisconsin Department of Children and Families. The programs
are distinct and unrelated to each other.
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Penfield Children's Center, inc. and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section k: Summary of Auditors' Results
Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the
caonsolidated financial statements audited were
prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to the consolidated financial
statements noted?

Federal and State Awards

Internal control over major federal and state
programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identlified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audil findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

|dentification of major federal and state program:

Assistance Listing Number(s)

84.181
I[dentification of major state programs:

Assistance Listing / State [D Number(s)

84.181/435.550

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between federal
Type A and Type B programs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between state
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee gqualified as low risk auditee?

unmodified
yes X
yes X
yes X
yes X
yes X
unmodified
yes X

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Special Education, Grants for Infants and Families

Name of State Program or Cluster

no
none reporied

no

no
none reported

no

Special Education, Grants for Infants and Families and

Birth to Three

$750,000

$250,000

X yes
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Penfield Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section lI: Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings

Section llI: Federal Findings and Questioned Costis
There were no findings or questioned cosis.

Section IV: Other Issues

Does the auditor have substantial doubt as {o the
auditee's ability to continue as a going concemn? yes

Does the audit report show audit issues (i.e. material
non-compliance, non-material non-compliance,
quesiioned costs, material weaknesses, significant
deficiencies, management letter comment, excess
revenLe or excess reserve) related to
grants/contracts with funding agencies that require
audiis to be in accordance with the State Single

Audit Guideiines:
Department of Health Services yes
Department of Public Instruction yes
Department of Children and Families yes

Was a management letter or other document
conveying audit comments issued as a result of
this audit? _ Yes

oo |
i ¥ et
Name and signature of partner 0 v

>

no

no
no
no

no

Ryan Lay, CPA

Date of the report September 19, 2022
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Penfieid Children's Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2021

The prior year audit disclosed no findings and, therefore, no uncorrected or unresolved findings exist from the
prior year.
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Penfield Children’'s Center, Inc. and Affiliates

Wisconsin Depariment of Health Services Cost Reimbursement Award Schedule
Contract for Children's Long-Term Support Access and Eligibility Services
Year Ended December 31, 2021

CARS profile or

PO #
43500-
DHS icentification number 000030943
Award amount $ 165,294
7/1/2020 -
Award period 6/30/2021
1/1/2021 -
Period of award within audit pericd 6/30/2021
Expenditures reported tc DHS or revenue received $ 92,043
Salaries 66,650
Employee benefits 7,213
Payroll taxes 6,373
Professional Fees 531
Occupancy 636
Conferences, conventions, meetings 25
Supplies : ' 738
Telephone 942
Insurance 795
Allocated costs 8,140
Total operating costs of award 92,043
Less disallowed costs -
Less program revenue and other offsets to costs -
Total allowable costs 92,043

Net surplus $ -
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